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About Us
The Nebraska Legislature created the
Metropolitan Utilities District in the early 1900s
as a political subdivision of the State to provide
water and natural gas to the metropolitan Omaha
area. The District is governed by a board of seven
directors, elected by our customer-owners. The
board usually meets the first Wednesday of every
month.

Engineering Ca

Our first water treatment plant was built
near the Missouri River in 1881 by a private
company. Omaha received water and gas service
from private water and gas companies until the
citizens of Omaha became dissatisfied with high
costs, constant ownership changes and poor service, and voted to take
control and ownership of their utilities. The Legislature created the Metropolitan Water District in
1913.

reer Fair

Five years later, state senators authorized the City of Omaha, which had acquired the gas
system by condemnation, to assign the responsibility for operation of the gas system to the
Metropolitan Water District. The name
was changed to the Metropolitan
Utilities District. Today, we are the
only metropolitan utility district in the
State of Nebraska. Our strength lies in
being a public utility, customer-owned
and governed by a locally-elected
board of directors.

Our Mission

We provide safe, reliable and costeffective natural gas and water
services to our community.

As the fifth largest public gas
utility in the United States, we provide a product and service at rates that are among the lowest in
the nation. We serve natural gas to 223,080 customer-owners in Omaha, Bennington, Fort Calhoun,
Springfield, Yutan and Bellevue.
We also provide safe drinking water to 207,026 customer-owners in Omaha, Bellevue,
Bennington, Carter Lake, La Vista, Ralston, Waterloo and the Papio-Missouri Natural Resources
District (which supplies water to Fort Calhoun). In addition, we maintain more than 27,000 water
hydrants throughout our service area for fire protection.
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Board of Directors
Officers
Senior Vice-Presidents
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2011

Thomas F. Dowd
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Statistical Highlights
Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 (unaudited)

2014

2013

2012

Water Department
Number of customers (December)
Sales (thousand gallons)
Operating revenues, net

$

Operating expenses
Operating Income (loss)

207,026

205,250

203,230

29,493,606

30,832,205

35,524,909

106,046,790

$

83,577,753

106,198,509

$

81,305,472

110,229,155
80,414,733

$

22,469,037

$

24,893,037

$

29,814,422

Plant additions and replacements, net

$

36,182,638

$

31,388,682

$

39,984,373

Plant in service

$

986,546,489

$

947,060,944

$

928,707,821

Miles of mains
Average daily pumpage (thousand
gallons)

2,886

2,866

2,854

86,836

91,397

103,681

223,080

221,023

218,979

29,545,878

29,755,286

22,699,082

4,547,038

4,700,662

4,928,453

34,092,916

34,455,948

27,627,535

Gas Department
Number of customers (December)
Sales (Dth):
Firm
Interruptible
Total
Operating revenues, net

$

Cost of gas sold
Other operating expenses

$

175,462,030

235,758,491

$

182,554,766

140,631,922

104,975,911
58,413,913

$

70,571,414

$

65,177,748

$

28,734,890

$

29,948,821

$

19,164,942

Plant additions and replacements, net

$

35,674,509

$

38,599,942

$

41,439,324

Plant in service

$

516,175,357

$

488,119,044

$

459,615,516

Operating income

Miles of mains
Average daily sendout (Dth)
Number of active employees, water and
gas combined

4

274,768,334

2,791

2,771

2,772

93,185

94,909

75,682

859

823

828

Report to Customers
We have another memorable year in the books and the District experienced good financial
performance in 2014. We overachieved budget in 2014, on a net income basis, by $7.2 million. Of
that, $5.2 million was related to the Gas division and $2 million related to the Water division. It is
the District’s intent to make sure the gas and water divisions are self-sustaining and the operational
expenses, debt servicing and capital costs are funded out of the respective rate setting processes.
There was no need for short-term borrowings of any nature between the two divisions.
Water revenues in 2014 were $106 million, virtually flat to the prior year, and just slightly below
budget of $107.8 million, or 1.6 percent. Volumes were 4.3 percent below prior year and 3 percent
below budget. Water operating expenses were favorable to budget by $3 million or 3.6 percent. Our
2014 water operating expenses were $2.2 million or 2.8 percent more than the prior year.
The District has been in compliance
with the water bond debt coverage
calculation, as required by our
outstanding bond issuances, since 2011.
This ratio needs to be at least 1.2 times,
per the bond issuance covenants. The
2014 calculation was 2.56 times, well
over the minimum required calculation.
In 2013 it was 2.73 times, in 2012 it
was 3.0 times and in 2011 it was 1.91
times.
Gas net revenues in 2014 were
$99.3 million, and favorable to budget
by $6.1 million or 6.6 percent. Net
revenues were favorable to the prior
year by $4.2 million or 4.4 percent.
Volumes (dekatherms) of gas sold
were up 9.4 percent to budget and
were 1.1 percent below prior year.
Gas operating expenses were
unfavorable to budget by $1 million
or 1.5 percent. Our 2014 gas
operating expenses were $5.4 million
or 8.3 percent more than the prior
year.

Trillium CNG Station Entrance
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Water Operations
Precipitation for 2014 was over 39 inches, which
was more than eight inches above normal. Total
water production for the year was about 3 percent
less than budget.

Florence Water Treatment Plant
We celebrated the 125th anniversary of the
Florence Plant with events for the staff and other
employees, retirees and families. About 200
people attended the August 2 open house to tour
the facility and museum.
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Workers repaired the concrete floor of
Settling Basin 1, which dates back to 1889 when
the plant was originally constructed. We also
replaced the #1 High Service pump and motor
to improve efficiencies. The Florence SCADA
(control system) upgrade project made significant progress in 2014. The
conversion was staged one location at a time to avoid any significant plant outages and completed in
the spring of 2015.

Major Projects at Florence
In April, Florence Basin 7 (the clear well) was put back into operation after major renovation
which had kept it out of service for more than a year.
A contractor began work on the Filter Plant rehabilitation project in November. The north half
of the Filter Plant was isolated and demolition began on process, HVAC, structural and electrical
equipment. Plant production was limited to 100 million gallons per day through the summer of
2015. The overall project also involves architectural, mechanical and control system improvements.
Rehabilitation of the south half of the Filter Plant will follow completion of the north half.

Platte South Water Treatment Plant
A Platte South clear well basin was taken out of service for about 12 weeks to remediate asbestos
found during a caulking project. The process was completed and the basin returned to service in April.
We replaced two high service engines that were originally installed in 1968 when the plant was
new. Our Maintenance staff removed, inspected and refurbished the vertical turbine pumps as part of
this project.
We completed a project to replace filter bed media. A contractor replaced filter media in five filters,
which involved vacuuming out the nearly 30-year-old sand and anthracite coal and replacing it with
new media. The final three filter beds were completed in April 2015.
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The Platte South well field communications project was completed in 2014. We replaced the
outdated and deteriorated system with modern communication cables to monitor more information
from the wells.

Platte West Water Treatment Plant
Winter and spring production at Platte West was much higher than normal because of the Platte
South Plant outage for clear well basin repair.
Consultants completed 2014 Platte West Annual Reports as required by the Corps of Engineers’
permit. Included is a request to adopt an updated well field contingency plan to address the effects of
increased irrigation in Saunders County that has affected our monitoring wells.

Water Quality, Water Distribution and Maintenance
Staff conducted monthly Giardia and cryptosporidium tests on finished water at both Florence and
Platte South and no positives resulted. These tests are necessary because Florence is a surface water
plant and Platte South is under the direct influence of surface water. The current tests are for informal
monitoring only and there were no detections on the treated water or in the Platte South raw water.
Another two-year round of mandated cryptosporidium testing, beginning in 2015, will determine
future treatment requirements, if any, at the Florence and Platte South plants.
Missouri River water quality caused by runoff was an issue at the Florence Plant in June, however
our newly installed aeration equipment was very effective in controlling trihalomethanes (THMs),
a disinfection by-product. We also used new chemical mixing equipment at the pre-sedimentation
basins and the mix basin and
increased softening and recarbonation
in the primary treatment basins.
Water Distribution staff provided
hydrant maintenance training to about
70 plumbers at the request of the
Omaha Fire Department. We continue
to perform preventive maintenance
on private hydrants that meet our
specifications as we have in the past.
The District maintains more than
27,000 hydrants in the metro Omaha
area.
The District entered an agreement
with the University of Nebraska
Omaha to share parking space north
of our construction center adjacent to
the school’s new arena. Maintenance
staff coordinated with the arena
contractor who repaved portions of
our parking lot.

Florence Filter Plant Rehab

We took the Skyline Reservoir out of service to be cleaned and inspected as part of our program to
inspect finished water reservoirs every five years. Maintenance staff completed pump and driver work
at the Florence and Platte South plants, as well as at several pumping stations.

Gas Operations
Gas sales for January through March 2014 were the highest on record at 15,854 MDth. The
previous record was 15,437 MDth, set in 2008. On January 27 and 28, Northern Natural Gas called
critical days, which increased pipeline penalties up to a maximum of $113/Dth due to high demands
and a loss of supplies from inter-connecting pipelines. Spot gas prices on those two days reached a
peak of $80/Dth.
Over that two-day period, the District’s peak shaving plants produced 151,000 Dth. The Liquefied
Natural Gas Plant produced 100,000 Dth and the propane-air plants produced 51,000 Dth. Without
these plants, the District would have incurred pipeline penalties of $9 million or purchased spot gas at
approximately $8 million over our LNG/propane replacement costs.
February gas sales were 22 percent higher than budget and the second highest February on
record. On March 1 and 2, the District set March peak-day records of gas sales, approximately 10
percent higher than the previous record.
Gas Production staff operated multiple peak
shaving plants on a 24/7 basis for an extended
period of time to provide the required peak shaving
gas. This resulted in a total savings to District
customers of $24 million in January, February and
March.
On December 1, 2014, Central Plains Energy
Project (CPEP) closed on the restructuring of the
2009 CPEP Project #2 Bonds. In order to refund
the CPEP #2 bonds that were issued in 2009, $601
million of new bonds were issued. The refunding of
the 2009 bonds resulted in the District receiving a
$12.5 million payment from CPEP and we will also
receive gas price discounts totaling $3.6 million over
the next five years.

NNG Bottle Truck Feeds
Ft. Calhoun
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We received three million gallons of propane
for our 117th and Fort propane cavern during the
summer. The low bid of $1.109/gallon was accepted
for a total purchase price of $3,327,000.
Gas Distribution participated in an emergency
shutdown and relight of the community of Fort
Calhoun after a gas main failure due to storm

flooding. We used a Northern Natural Gas
bottle truck to supply temporary gas to
the town. Our Field Services technicians
relighted more than 600 customers and
our Construction crews replaced the main.

Compressed Natural Gas
Approximately 200 guests attended
the August 27 ribbon cutting and grand
opening of the Trillium CNG fueling
station at 132nd and Cornhusker Rd.
Senior Vice-President Mark Doyle emceed
the event, which included speeches from
Congressman Lee Terry, State Senator
Jeremy Nordquist, Trillium President Mary
Boettcher and Werner Enterprises Senior
Vice-President of Fleet Resources Steve
Phillips. A variety of CNG trucks and
vans were on display along with vendor
information booths.

AmeriPride CNG Step Van

In 2014, the District’s CNG Fleet Fund helped commercial fleets purchase and deploy more than
60 CNG vehicles in the Omaha area. The 60 vehicles are expected to use more than 560,000 gasoline
gallon equivalents (GGEs) and displace 127,000 barrels of oil annually. This also results in an annual
emission savings of 1,024 tons of carbon dioxide. These are significant numbers that will positively
impact air quality.
Metro Omaha representatives traveled with Marketing staff to Kansas City to take a site tour of a
new private CNG station at the Kansas City Area Transportation Authority. Metro continues to research
natural gas as a fuel option to reduce fuel cost and greenhouse emissions for their fleet. Werner
Enterprises took delivery of 10 new CNG semi-tractors at the end of November. This fleet of tractors is
forecasted to use more than 2.1 million GGEs over the next five years. Other fleets that took delivery
of CNG vehicles include Happy Cab, City of Omaha, Tritsch Electric, University of Nebraska-Omaha,
A-1 United Heating and Air, DPS Construction, AmeriPride and Backlund Plumbing.

Engineering, Construction and Transportation
In 2014, the District spent $19.8 million to improve infrastructure and replace older cast iron
gas and water mains. We abandoned 30.7 miles of gas and 8.3 miles of water pipe. Within the next
14 years, the District plans to replace approximately 415 miles of cast iron gas mains, and over the
next few decades will replace more than 1,200 miles of cast iron water mains. Our goal for 2015 is to
replace approximately 26 miles of gas and 10 miles of water mains.
We designed a 24-inch transmission water main into Sarpy County to provide water to the
Traveler’s Insurance site and future development along this corridor.
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We completed design and construction of remodeling projects for District facilities, including the
Operations Center restrooms, Engineering office space, lobby conference room, Vice Presidents’ area,
Field Engineering office and dispatch areas.
Engineering Design staff continued to draw existing gas and water services in the Geographical
Information System, completing 150,000 in 2014. A contractor scanned approximately 50 percent of
Engineering’s paper records for digital storage and retrieval. The work will be completed in 2015.
The District continued its proactive inspection program to check sewer lines for cross bores, where
one utility line is bored through another. We performed 8,374 sewer lateral inspections and found
62 cross bores. To date, we have discovered and repaired approximately 184 cross bores since the
program began in 2011.
Construction crews completed gas and water installations/relocations at the 26th and Corby
combined sewer overflow (CSO) project, the 16th and Webster CSO project, the Missouri Avenue/
Spring Lake Park CSO project, the 90th and Dodge infrastructure replacement project and the Montclair
Drive (135th to 138th Streets) infrastructure replacement project.
Our construction crews repaired 486 water main breaks, which was slightly down from the
previous two years.
The District put into service 34 new vehicles and pieces of equipment worth $1.86 million. We sold
26 vehicles and pieces of equipment at auction for approximately $240,000.

Safety & Security
We developed a fiveyear Safety Improvement
Plan to move the District’s
safety performance into
the top quartile of similar
companies for recordable
injuries and above average
when compared to similar
companies for preventable
vehicle accidents. The
District met both of its
goal rates for 2014.

Gas Main Replacement

Our recordable injury
rate was 3.80 compared
to the established goal
rate of 4.14, and our
preventable vehicle
accident goal rate was
10.79 compared to the
established goal rate of

11.84. The District’s
safety performance
in 2014 continued
a 10-plus year
downward trend in
accident and injury
rates.
We implemented
a variety of
initiatives to
improve safety
performance. The
District president
and vice-president
of Safety and
Security met with
each employee who had
a recordable injury or preventable vehicle accident to discuss details of the incidents. They also met
with all supervisors to discuss the District’s safety program and seek their input.

Thirstin's Water Adventure Cast & Crew

In 2014, the District’s guard service contract was rebid and awarded to AlliedBarton Security
Services. This new three-year contract was developed to add additional security benefits to the
District in both security guard training and overall performance. We completed a security video
improvement project at the LNG facility to replace the existing system with a more cost-effective and
flexible platform.
The District participated in a Department of Homeland Security Site Assistance Visit. This
voluntary program allowed the District to evaluate current security and emergency plans and
procedures with subject matter experts. Information gathered during this visit will aid in the
development and improvement of the District’s security and emergency procedures.

Marketing and Community Outreach
The District has been delivering natural gas to the cities of Springfield, Bennington, and Fort
Calhoun for more than 40 years. We also have delivered natural gas to Yutan for 25 years. We
initiated meetings with each city to renew their gas franchise, as they were set to expire in 2015. All
four city councils approved new 25-year franchise agreements. These communities are strategically
connected to our service area, and poised for significant growth and direct impact for attracting new
customers.
In conjunction with the Sarpy County Economic Development Corporation (SCEDC), the District
secured a $1.7 million agreement to extend water mains to the Travelers data center located near
150th and Schram. The water service design included 2.7 miles of 24-, 16- and 12-inch diameter
mains with redundant water service.
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The SCEDC awarded the District
with their 2014 Partner in Economic
Development and Business Progress
Award. The award recognizes an
organization that has consistently
supported the efforts of the SCEDC
in its mission to create new jobs
and investment in Sarpy County.
We completed the water
education video “Thirstin’s Water
Adventure,” which explains how
the District treats drinking water
and supplies it to customers.
Our Employee Speakers Bureau
members show the video to
Florence Plant tour groups and
in classroom presentations.

Food Drive for Comple

tely KIDS

Our employees continued to show their community spirit by donating more than $110,000 to
the United Way of the Midlands, a 14-percent increase in giving from the previous year. Employees
also donated food to Completely Kids for its Weekend Backpack Program and clothing to the Urban
League of Nebraska for its Career Closet.
Meter Reading employees held their annual golf tournament to raise money for the District’s Heat
Aid Fund. For the seventh year, we partnered with OPPD and Black Hills Energy on the Heat the
Streets Run and Walk for Warmth to support energy assistance programs in the Omaha area.

Information Technology and Strategic Planning
We worked with Human Resources staff to launch Success Factors, a cloud-based system to
manage recruitment, employee goals, performance appraisals and compensation. In addition we
implemented SAP Fiori which
provides employees online access
to their pay stubs.
As part of our mobility
efforts, we deployed SAP Mobile
Platform to allow field employees
to complete work orders online in
real time. For example, customer
service technicians now use
tablets to input backflow testing
data which has saved time and
improved the process.
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Home-Based Reporting

We have begun to see additional efficiencies
as we roll out Global Positioning System (GPS)
technology on the District fleet and a pilot project
for home-based reporting in early 2015. We
have a group of Field Service technicians who
take their District vehicles home and start their
workdays from home instead of the Operating
Center.
We offered customers the option of paperless
billing via MyAccount on the website. To date,
nearly 30,000 customers (approximately 12
percent) are enrolled in the program. We also
began offering online forms to request the start,
transfer or discontinuation of service, to update
contact information or submit a meter reading.
To improve internal District communications,
we introduced an employee intranet in October.
Human Resources, Safety and Security, Information
Technology and Corporate Communications are
the initial groups providing content to the site.
We will continue to enhance the intranet including
dashboards to track key performance indicators
(KPIs) as outlined in the District’s strategic plan.

Sniffy at Durham Museum

In 2014, senior management worked with all
areas of the District to identify KPIs and industry benchmarks. This work allowed the District to
establish a measurement system to confirm performance in some areas and also find areas we need to
improve.
In early 2015, the District introduced a new mission, core values program and vision to strive
to become one of the nation’s top utilities. This will be demonstrated by achieving industry leading
performance in safety, reliability, customer service, financial stability, efficiency and regulatory
compliance.
Overall, our goal is to focus on improving day-to-day performance to provide even better value to
our customer-owners. We are confident that our employees have the talent and dedication to make the
District one of the top gas and water utilities in the country.

Scott L. Keep, President					

Thomas F. Dowd, Board Chairman
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Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors
Metropolitan Utilities District
Omaha, Nebraska

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund of
the Metropolitan Utilities District (the District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.
Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities and each major fund of the District, as of December 31, 2014,
and the respective changes in financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
The financial statements of the District, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were
audited by other auditors whose report dated March 25, 2014 expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements.
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 10, other postemployment benefit plan and pension schedules on
page 39 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary and statistical sections as
listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements. This information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, for the year ended December 31, 2014 we have also
issued our report dated March 17, 2015, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. For the year ended December 31, 2013, other auditors have issued their report
dated March 25, 2014. The purpose of those reports is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. Those reports are an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Omaha, Nebraska
March 17, 2015
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2014 and 2013

This section presents management’s analysis and overview of the Metropolitan Utilities District’s (the District)
financial condition and activities as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. This information
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.
Overview of Financial Statements
Management’s discussion and analysis serves as an introduction to the financial statements and supplementary
information. The financial statements report information about the District using accrual accounting.
The statement of net position presents information on the District’s assets, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, with the difference between them reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of the District’s financial position.
The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents information on how the District’s net
position changed during the year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future periods.
The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other information that are necessary to
understand material data provided in the financial statements. The notes begin on page 15.
Financial Highlights
The District’s overall financial position and results of operations for the current and prior year are summarized
below. This information is derived from the financial statements and records of the District:
Gas Department
2014
Sales, volume sold – DTH:
Firm gas sales
Interruptible gas sales

$

29,545,878
4,547,038

Total gas sales $

34,092,916

Degree days
Customers (at December 31):
Firm customers
Interruptible customers

2013

%

87
13

29,755,286
4,700,662

100

34,455,948

2012

%

86
14

22,699,082
4,928,453

100

27,627,535

%

100

4,550

6,390

6,329

223,055
25

220,996
27

218,951
28

223,080

221,023

218,979

Gas volumes sold in 2014 decreased 363,032 DTH, or 1.1%, from 2013 despite slightly colder winter weather, as
evidenced by the 1% increase in the number of degree days. There was an increase in firm gas customers in 2014
of 2,059, or .9%; there was a decrease of two interruptible gas customers that switched from interruptible to firm
gas rate schedules.
3
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Gas volumes sold in 2013 increased 6,828,413 DTH, or 24.7%, from 2012 due to colder winter weather, as
evidenced by a 39.1% increase in the number of degree days. There was an increase in firm gas customers in
2013 of 2,045 or 0.9%; there was a decrease of one interruptible gas customers due to discontinued operations.
Gas Department Summary of Results of Operations
2014
Operating revenues:
Firm and interruptible gas sales
Infrastructure charge
Other
Less bad debt expense
Total operating revenues, net
Operating expenses:
Cost of natural gas
Other operating expenses
Total operating expenses
Nonoperating revenues (expenses), net
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$ 257,110,991
12,562,440
6,147,973
(1,053,070)

2013
93% $ 218,354,597
5
13,198,133
2
4,909,532
—
(703,771)

2012
92% $ 163,903,632
6
12,492,697
2
6,636,397
—
(477,960)

89%
7
4
—

274,768,334

100%

235,758,491

100%

182,554,766

100%

175,462,030
70,571,414

71%
29

140,631,922
65,177,748

68%
32

104,975,911
58,413,913

64%
36

246,033,444

100%

205,809,670

100%

163,389,824

100%

(79,200)

(11,689)

5,108,124

28,655,690

29,937,132

24,273,066

298,736,665

268,799,533

244,526,467

$ 327,392,355

$ 298,736,665

$ 268,799,533

Revenues from gas sales, net, were up 16.5% in 2014 due primarily to higher gas costs, as volumes sold were
1.1% lower than in prior year. Revenues from gas sales, net, were up 29.1% in 2013 due to higher volumes sold
and higher gas costs. The annual revenues for the average residential gas customer were $828.72 in 2014
compared to $673.63 in 2013 and to $512.75 in 2012.
The District initiated an Infrastructure Replacement Charge effective January 2, 2008. This charge is included in
the annual revenue for the average residential customer stated above for all three years.
Total operating expenses in 2014 were up 19.5% from 2013. In 2014, the cost of natural gas was 24.8% more
than in 2013 on volumes that were slightly lower. In 2014, other operating expenses were 8.3% higher than in
2013 due to increased distribution maintenance, costs to support collection activities and associated turn-on costs,
increased postage, statutory payments attributed to higher revenues and depreciation. The aforementioned
operating expense increases were partially offset by reduced administrative and general expenses, due in part to
$1.7 million of CRB-related costs that were expensed in 2013. Total operating expenses in 2013 were up 26.0%
from 2012. In 2013, the cost of natural gas was 34.0% more than in 2012. In 2013 other operating expenses were
11.6% higher than in 2012 due to increased production, distribution and statutory payments attributable to higher
volumes. Additionally, as noted previously, the June implementation of the Customer Relationship and Billing
System (CRB System) resulted in approximately $1.7 million additional expense to the Gas Department related
to development costs that did not meet the criteria for capitalization. The CRB System implementation further
impacted costs due to the incurrence of significant overtime in Customer Service and Customer Accounting, the
costs of which are shared between the Gas and Water departments.
4
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The District contracts with Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP) for a significant portion of its gas purchases.
CPEP is a public body created under Nebraska Interlocal Law for the purpose of securing long-term, economical,
and reliable gas supplies. CPEP currently has three members: the District, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Hastings
Utilities. CPEP has acquired gas through long-term prepaid gas purchase agreements and delivers gas to its
members or customers through long-term gas supply contracts for specified volumes of gas at market-based
pricing less a contractual discount. Under the current agreements, the District anticipates taking approximately
90% of the gas acquired in these transactions under a 20-year gas purchase agreements entered into with CPEP in
2007 and two 30-year gas purchase agreements, one entered into in 2009 and the other in 2012. Terms of this
2007 gas supply agreement were renegotiated in 2009 and again in 2012; the gas flows under this agreement will
now expire on October 31, 2020. Pursuant to the renegotiation in terms that occurred in 2012, the District
received $4.4 million, included in other revenue, to compensate the District for the reduction in gas deliveries. As
discussed below, the 2009 long-term prepaid gas purchase contract has also been renegotiated subsequent to
litigation.
In January 2014, Royal Bank of Canada (RBC) filed a lawsuit in U.S. District Court in Omaha to terminate its
30-year obligation to deliver gas pursuant to CPEP #2, which originated in August 2009. The CPEP #2 supply
agreement accounts for approximately 15% of the District’s annual gas requirements. RBC asserted that a change
in international bank regulations relative to a requirement to maintain increased reserves against prospective
losses related to the CPEP deal, serves as a “triggering event” to terminate the supply agreement. CPEP disputed
RBC’s position, and a countersuit was subsequently filed. On December 1, 2014, this matter was resolved; the
renegotiation provides for the following: 1) $12.5 million up-front proceeds at closing, which have been recorded
as unearned gas purchase discounts by the District, and will be recognized as a reduction of the cost of natural
gas based on the pattern of gas purchases through October 2019, 2) locked-in discounts of $.16 per DTH for the
period November 1, 2014 through October 31, 2019, and 3) the ability to renegotiate discounts for the November
1, 2019 through June 30, 2039, the remaining duration of the contract. It should be noted that the aforementioned
$12.5 million up-front proceeds are restricted, in that they must be spent on capital projects within three years
from the closing date of December 1, 2014.

5
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Gas Department Summary Financial Position

Plant in service, net
Noncurrent assets
Current assets

Total assets

Deferred inflows of resources
Contributions in aid of construction
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

$

2014
360,914,829
13,737,935
135,359,340
510,012,104

2013
343,316,804
1,344,028
109,628,813
454,289,645

2012
322,288,100
1,881,496
95,585,739
419,755,335

$

42,892,372

43,262,178

43,873,214

69,469,353
70,258,024
139,727,377

57,544,724
54,746,078
112,290,802

56,652,406
50,430,182
107,082,588

316,636,764
662,500
10,093,091
327,392,355

298,457,649
279,016
298,736,665

276,493,145
(7,693,612)
268,799,533

510,012,104

454,289,645

419,755,335

$

Total liabilities

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
CPEP #2 Settlement Fund
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources,
and net position

$

Gas Department Long-Term Debt Activity
Debt totaled $1,385,683 and $1,596,977 in the Gas Department at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively,
which relates to a low-interest loan obtained from the Nebraska Energy Office and its lending partner; the loan
matures December 15, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 2.5% per annum.
Gas Department Capital Asset Activity
The District remains committed to expending the funds necessary to allow for continued safe and reliable
delivery of natural gas to the District’s customers. A key component of this commitment is addressing the
District’s aging infrastructure, as evidenced by the District’s ongoing efforts to replace all remaining cast iron
gas mains, approximately 425 miles, over the next ten to fifteen years; the District expended $11.2 million to
improve infrastructure and replace cast iron gas mains in 2014 and $12.0 million in 2013.
In 2014, capital and construction-related costs totaled $35.7 million, consisting of: 1) infrastructure replacement
$11.2 million (discussed above), 2) other gas mains and distribution $11.0 million, 3) buildings, land and
equipment $4.5 million, 4) information technology-related $4.2 million and 5) vehicles, equipment and all other
general plant $4.8 million.
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In 2013, capital and construction-related costs totaled $38.6 million, consisting of: 1) infrastructure replacement
$12.0 million (discussed above), 2) other gas mains and distribution $11.6 million, 3) information technologyrelated $6.6 million, 4) buildings, land and equipment $4.1 million, and 5) vehicles, equipment and all other
general plant $4.3 million.
.
Water Department
Water sales (million gallons)

2014

2013

2012

29,493.6

30,832.2

35,524.9

In 2014, the volume of water sales decreased 1,338.6 million gallons, or 4.3% due in part to full year
precipitation levels that were 8 inches above normal, resulting in less commercial and residential sprinkling. In
2013, the volume of water sales decreased 4,692.7 million gallons, or 13.2% due to increased usage in 2012
associated with the drought.
Customers (December 31)

2014

2013

2012

207,026

205,250

203,230

The number of customers at the end of 2014 increased 1,776, or .9%, over 2013. The number of customers at the
end of 2013 increased 2,020, or 1.0%, over 2012.
Water Department Summary of Results of Operations
2014
Operating revenues:
Water sales
Infrastructure charge
Other
Less bad debt expense
Total operating revenues, net
Operating expenses
Nonoperating expenses net
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

87,406,646
13,988,367
5,233,643
(581,866)
106,046,790

2013
82% $
13
5
—
100%

88,549,079
14,691,053
3,085,568
(127,191)
106,198,509

2012
83% $
14
3
—
100%

92,833,946
13,903,211
3,626,408
(134,410)

84%
13
3
—

110,229,155

100%

83,577,753
7,102,145

81,305,472
7,830,100

80,414,733
8,165,564

15,366,892

17,062,937

21,648,858

271,702,964

254,640,027

232,991,169

$ 287,069,856

$ 271,702,964

$ 254,640,027

Operating revenues, net, were virtually the same in 2014 as prior year. Operating revenues, net, decreased 3.7%
in 2013 due primarily to the unusually high revenues in 2012 associated with the drought. The annual revenues
for the average residential water customer were $ 317.16 in 2014 compared to $334.84 in 2013 and to $345.05 in
2012.
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Total operating expenses in 2014 were up 2.8% due to increased costs to support collection activities and
associated turn-on costs, increased postage, water infrastructure-related service reconnects and increased
purification expenses at all plants. The aforementioned operating expense increases were partially offset by
reduced administrative and general expenses, due in part to $1.5 million of CRB-related costs that were expensed
in 2013. Total operating expenses in 2013 were up 1.1% due primarily to the aforementioned June
implementation of the CRB System, which resulted in approximately $1.5 million additional expense to the
Water Department related to development costs that did not meet the criteria for capitalization. The CRB System
implementation further impacted costs due to significant overtime in Customer Service and Customer
Accounting, the costs of which are shared between the Gas and Water departments. The CRB-related expense
increases were partially offset by reduced pumping, purification and distribution expenses associated with the
13.2% reduction in Water volumes for the year.
Water Summary Financial Position

Plant in service, net
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Total assets
Deferred inflows of resources

2014

2013

2012

$

796,770,127
64,338,701
3,464,524

779,650,394
45,958,524
10,577,903

766,662,405
31,029,040
22,020,639

$

864,573,352

836,186,821

819,712,084

$

287,781,637

282,946,401

281,719,900

41,716,144
248,005,715

30,958,815
250,578,641

31,803,497
251,548,660

289,721,859

281,537,456

283,352,157

304,761,896
6,134,347
(23,826,387)

290,508,699
6,174,291
(24,980,026)

284,219,557
6,120,080
(35,699,610)

287,069,856

271,702,964

254,640,027

864,573,352

836,186,821

819,712,084

Current liabilities
Long-term obligations
Total liabilities
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net position
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, and net position

$

Water Department Long-Term Debt Activity
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, long-term obligations included a note payable of $97,695 and $159,856,
respectively, at 3% interest per annum, to the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality (NDEQ). During
2014 and 2013, the District paid $62,161 and $60,337 respectively, on the note payable to NDEQ. In 2009, the
District entered into an American Recovery and Reinvestment Act loan agreement with the NDEQ for the
construction of a contact basin located near its Platte South Water Treatment Plant; the loan is at a 2% interest
rate per annum. This loan provided for $1,089,775 in loan forgiveness in the form of a grant, at project
8
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completion. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, long term obligations for this note were $4,940,603 and
$5,191,088 respectively. During 2014 and 2013, the District made principal payments of $250,485 and $245,974
respectively pursuant to this note payable.
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the District’s long-term debt included $79,705,000 and $82,910,000,
respectively, in Series 2006A bonds outstanding. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the District’s long-term debt
included $80,075,000 and $82,925,000, respectively, of Series 2006B revenue bonds outstanding. During 2014
and 2013, respectively, the District made principal payments of $6,055,000 and $5,845,000 toward its
outstanding Series 2006A and 2006B water revenue bonds.
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the District’s long term debt included $38,285,000 and $39,560,000,
respectively, of Series 2012 bonds outstanding. During 2014 and 2013, respectively, the District made principal
payments of $1,275,000 and $1,185,000 towards its outstanding Series 2012 water revenue bonds.
Water Department Long-Term Debt Covenant Compliance
2006A Series Bonds, 2006B Series Bonds and Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012
The District was in compliance with the provisions of the Series 2006A and 2006B water revenue bonds
covenants at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. The 2006A and 2006B water revenue bonds covenants require
charges and assessments collected in each fiscal year to be greater than the sum of (1) current expenses, (2) 120%
of average annual debt service of the revenue bonds, and (3) 100% of any other unpaid long-term obligations and
any other indebtedness as they become due.
The District was in compliance with the provisions of the Water Revenue Series 2012 bonds covenants at
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Relative to this bond offering, the District covenants that it will fix,
establish, and maintain rates or charges for water, services, or facilities supplied or furnished by the District that
will provide an amount sufficient to pay current expenses and to generate net revenue at least equal to the sum of:
(a) 120% of the amount equal to the average principal and interest requirements on the bonds, including any
parity revenue bonds, then outstanding; and (b) 100% of the amount required to pay any other unpaid long term
obligations (excluding current expenses) and any other unpaid indebtedness of the District (including any
amounts required to be accumulated and maintained as reserves therefore) that are payable from system
revenues, as the same shall become due.
Charges and assessments exceeded amounts required by covenants by approximately $21.7 million and
$24.4 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively. Please see the chart below for debt service coverage ratio
information:

Debt service coverage ratios
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2014

2013

2012

2.56x

2.73x

3.00x
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Water Department Capital Asset Activity
Significant projects in 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
•



Significant 2014 construction expenditures for projects completed or in process included:
1)

Platte South water treatment plant - Replace two 20 million-gallon-per-day pumps that were original
to the plant; the pumps are an integral part of the District’s standby water production capacity: $2.9
million;

2)

Florence water treatment plant - Replace a failed pump motor with a new motor, transformer and
variable frequency drive to match desired water flow rates: $2.7 million;

3)

Florence water treatment plant – Design and construction costs related to the renovation of the filter
plant including structural repairs, architectural rehabilitation, mechanical improvements including
dehumidification, electrical panels, wiring and fixture replacement and process improvements
including valve replacements, chemical storage and chemical feed improvements: $2.7 million;

4)

Florence water treatment plant – Perform a major upgrade of the Supervisory Control and Data
Acquisition system (control system) involving several processes in several separate buildings of the
plant: $1.8 million;

5)

Florence water treatment plant – Phase 2 improvements - Completion of Basin 7 (clearwell)
renovation as described in item #1 below of the 2013 construction projects: $.9 million.

Significant 2013 construction expenditures for projects completed or in process included:
1)

Florence water treatment plant – Phase 2 improvements – Basin 7 (clearwell) renovation consisting
of a new liner system, replacement of ceiling panels, replacement of wall panels, new filter
backwash pumps, valves/piping and relocation of a large high service water main: $8.1 million;

2)

Florence water treatment plant – Phase 2 aeration improvements consisting of large air blowers and
extensive piping and diffusers to remove Trihalomethanes (THMs): $2.6 million;

3)

Platte South water treatment plant – Phase 2 HVAC improvements which are designed to direct heat
and control condensation around the upflow basins and skylights as well as repair damaged concrete
in areas impacted by years of condensation: $2.1 million; and

4)

Florence water treatment plant – Phase 2 THM reduction project consisting of the addition of a
chlorine application point to provide the ability to decrease the time the water is in contact with free
chlorine: $.4 million.

Contact Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances. Questions concerning
any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed
to the President of the District at 1723 Harney Street, Omaha, Nebraska 68102.
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2014
Assets
Capital assets:
Utility plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation

$

Construction in progress
Net capital assets
Noncurrent assets:
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Other noncurrent assets
Total noncurrent assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents – restricted
Interdepartmental note receivable
Accounts receivable – customers and others,
less allowance for doubtful accounts
Interdepartmental receivable
Natural gas in storage
Propane in storage
Materials and supplies
Construction materials
Prepayments
Total current assets
Total assets

$

2013

Gas
Department

Water
Department

Gas
Department

Water
Department

516,175,357
166,126,941

986,546,489
218,627,138

—
—

1,502,721,846
384,754,079

488,119,044
157,845,857

947,060,944
203,052,226

—
—

1,435,179,988
360,898,083

350,048,416

767,919,351

—

10,866,413

28,850,776

—

1,117,967,767

330,273,187

744,008,718

—

1,074,281,905

39,717,189

13,043,617

35,641,676

—

360,914,829

796,770,127

48,685,293

—

1,157,684,956

343,316,804

779,650,394

—

1,122,967,198

12,500,000
1,237,935

3,055,931
408,593

—
—

15,555,931
1,646,528

—
1,344,028

8,959,039
1,618,864

—
—

8,959,039
2,962,892

13,737,935

3,464,524

—

17,202,459

1,344,028

10,577,903

—

11,921,931

66,577,713
—
—

15,198,510
5,962,680
—

—
—
—

81,776,223
5,962,680
—

48,064,238
—
518,064

16,710,361
6,002,655
—

45,226,107
—
12,838,111
5,123,297
3,259,401
2,104,955
229,756

30,521,490
8,889,199
—
—
2,255,603
1,362,890
148,329

—
(8,889,199)
—
—
—
—
—

75,747,597
—
12,838,111
5,123,297
5,515,004
3,467,845
378,085

39,799,593
—
11,849,603
3,196,431
3,359,724
2,498,034
343,126

19,346,297
—
—
—
2,428,537
997,110
473,564

135,359,340

64,338,701

(8,889,199)

190,808,842

510,012,104

864,573,352

(8,889,199)

1,365,696,257

Eliminations
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Total
$

$

Eliminations

—
—
(518,064)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

Total

64,774,599
6,002,655
—
59,145,890
—
11,849,603
3,196,431
5,788,261
3,495,144
816,690

109,628,813

45,958,524

(518,064)

155,069,273

454,289,645

836,186,821

(518,064)

1,289,958,402

2014
Gas
Department

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
CPEP #2 Settlement Fund
Environmental
Bond reserve fund in lieu of insurance
Debt service requirements-sinking fund
Unrestricted

$ 316,636,764

Total net position

Water
Department

2013
Eliminations

Gas
Department

Total

304,761,896

—

621,398,660

662,500
—
—
—
10,093,091

—
171,667
2,954,531
3,008,149
(23,826,387)

—
—
—
—
—

662,500
171,667
2,954,531
3,008,149
(13,733,296)

$ 298,457,649

Water
Department

Eliminations

Total

290,508,699

—

588,966,348

—
—
—
—
279,016

—
171,636
2,954,531
3,048,124
(24,980,026)

—
—
—
—
—

—
171,636
2,954,531
3,048,124
(24,701,010)

327,392,355

287,069,856

—

614,462,211

298,736,665

271,702,964

—

570,439,629

Deferred inflows of resources
Contributions in aid of construction

42,892,372

287,781,637

—

330,674,009

43,262,178

282,946,401

—

326,208,579

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, excluding current installments
Self-insured risks
Remediation obligation
Net pension obligation
Postretirement obligation
Other accrued expenses
Unearned gas purchase discounts

1,168,980
439,357
1,500,000
918,700
53,501,593
3,391,894
9,337,500

199,201,297
70,914
—
760,824
44,307,535
3,665,145
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

200,370,277
510,271
1,500,000
1,679,524
97,809,128
7,057,039
9,337,500

1,385,674
299,964
—
1,606,699
46,673,034
3,175,182
—

207,340,050
42,449
—
1,325,233
38,496,736
3,374,173
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—

208,725,724
342,413
—
2,931,932
85,169,770
6,549,355
—

70,258,024

248,005,715

—

318,263,739

53,140,553

250,578,641

—

303,719,194

36,405,228
14,877,872
218,775
8,889,199
—
1,297,887
139,085
216,713
—
467,261
4,457,333
2,500,000

4,709,046
1,958,453
5,032,644
—
19,771,909
448,119
150,288
7,909,561
706,925
1,029,199
—
—

—
—
—
(8,889,199)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

41,114,274
16,836,325
5,251,419
—
19,771,909
1,746,006
289,373
8,126,274
706,925
1,496,460
4,457,333
2,500,000

38,729,222
16,572,270
43,899
—
—
1,110,051
130,199
211,303
—
747,780
1,605,525
—

5,579,117
2,752,450
3,663,596
518,064
8,528,007
453,420
138,357
7,642,647
719,734
963,423
—
—

—
—
—
(518,064)
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

Total noncurrent liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and remediation obligation
Customer deposits
Customer advances for construction
Interdepartmental payable
Sewer fee collection due municipalities
Statutory payment due municipalities
Other accrued expenses
Current installments of long-term debt
Accrued interest
Self-insured risks
Other liabilities
Unearned gas purchase discounts
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

44,308,339
19,324,720
3,707,495
—
8,528,007
1,563,471
268,556
7,853,950
719,734
1,711,203
1,605,525
—

69,469,353

41,716,144

(8,889,199)

102,296,298

59,150,249

30,958,815

(518,064)

89,591,000

139,727,377

289,721,859

(8,889,199)

420,560,037

112,290,802

281,537,456

(518,064)

393,310,194

510,012,104

864,573,352

(8,889,199)

1,365,696,257

454,289,645

836,186,821

(518,064)

1,289,958,402

Total liabilities, deferred inflow of
resources, and net position

$

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013
2013

2014

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Less bad debt expense

$

Charges for services, net
Operating expenses:
Cost of natural gas
Operating and maintenance
Depreciation
Payment in lieu of taxes
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues
(expenses), net
Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

$

Gas
Department

Water
Department

Gas
Department

Water
Department

275,821,404
1,053,070

106,628,656
581,866

—
—

382,450,060
1,634,936

236,462,262
703,771

106,325,700
127,191

—
—

342,787,962
830,962

274,768,334

106,046,790

—

380,815,124

235,758,491

106,198,509

—

341,957,000

175,462,030
53,673,848
12,352,534
4,545,032

—
69,811,596
12,425,846
1,340,311

—
—
—
—

175,462,030
123,485,444
24,778,380
5,885,343

140,631,922
49,780,661
11,674,848
3,722,239

—
67,854,191
12,072,460
1,378,821

—
—
—
—

140,631,922
117,634,852
23,747,308
5,101,060

246,033,444

83,577,753

—

329,611,197

205,809,670

81,305,472

—

287,115,142

28,734,890

22,469,037

—

51,203,927

29,948,821

24,893,037

—

54,841,858

3,364
(82,564)

104,249
(7,206,394)

—
—

107,613
(7,288,958)

75,410
(87,099)

520
(7,830,620)

(79,200)

(7,102,145)

—

(7,181,345)

(11,689)

(7,830,100)

—

Eliminations

Total
$

Eliminations

(70,096)
70,096

Total

5,834
(7,847,623)
(7,841,789)

28,655,690

15,366,892

—

44,022,582

29,937,132

17,062,937

—

47,000,069

298,736,665

271,702,964

—

570,439,629

268,799,533

254,640,027

—

523,439,560

327,392,355

287,069,856

—

614,462,211

298,736,665

271,702,964

—

570,439,629

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers, net
Payments to employees
Payments in lieu of taxes

$

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interdepartmental loans and advances
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Plant additions
Payments on long-term debt
Construction advances/CIAC
Proceeds received from loans and grants
Interest paid
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation:
Charged to depreciation
Charged to operating and maintenance
Cash flows impacted by changes in:
Amounts due from customers and others
Natural gas, propane, materials, supplies, and prepayments
Other noncurrent assets
Accounts payable and other
Customer deposits
Self-insurance and other liabilities
Net pension obligation
Postretirement obligation
Unearned gas purchase discounts
Net cash provided by operating activities

Gas
Department

2013
Water
Department

Total

222,456,830
(151,964,838)
(32,238,910)
(3,722,239)

106,659,846
(31,827,428)
(26,633,296)
(1,378,821)

329,116,676
(183,792,266)
(58,872,206)
(5,101,060)

100,017,455

34,530,843

46,820,301

81,351,144

(9,407,263)

—

2,859,336

(2,859,336)

—

(9,407,263)

—

2,859,336

(2,859,336)

—

(72,152,755)
(7,853,930)
12,316,196
—
(8,876,038)

(37,414,724)
(206,007)
163,722
—
(274,752)

(30,205,387)
(7,336,311)
6,030,837
518,512
(8,997,941)

(67,620,111)
(7,542,318)
6,194,559
518,512
(9,272,693)

(39,718,710)

(76,566,527)

(37,731,761)

(39,990,290)

(77,722,051)

3,364

104,249

107,613

5,314

520

5,834

3,364

104,249

107,613

5,314

520

5,834

31,013,475

(7,454,934)

23,558,541

(336,268)

3,971,195

3,634,927

Gas
Department

2014
Water
Department

Total

273,248,959
(176,857,422)
(33,395,840)
(4,545,032)

95,453,463
(24,849,585)
(27,696,777)
(1,340,311)

368,702,422
(201,707,007)
(61,092,617)
(5,885,343)

58,450,665

41,566,790

9,407,263
9,407,263
(37,115,346)
(211,284)
606,387
—
(127,574)

(35,037,409)
(7,642,646)
11,709,809
—
(8,748,464)

(36,847,817)

$

48,064,238

31,672,055

79,736,293

48,400,506

27,700,860

76,101,366

$

79,077,713

24,217,121

103,294,834

48,064,238

31,672,055

79,736,293

$

28,734,890

22,469,037

51,203,927

29,948,821

24,893,037

54,841,858

12,352,534
5,277,649

12,425,846
713,399

24,778,380
5,991,048

11,674,848
5,345,431

12,072,460
751,589

23,747,308
6,097,020

(5,426,514)
(2,701,681)
106,093
1,068,340
(1,649,388)
2,710,682
(687,999)
6,828,559
11,837,500

(11,175,193)
498,169
1,210,271
10,878,627
(793,997)
94,241
(564,409)
5,810,799
—

(16,601,707)
(2,203,512)
1,316,364
11,946,967
(2,443,385)
2,804,923
(1,252,408)
12,639,358
11,837,500

(17,743,924)
(1,052,605)
236,832
4,331,401
(1,437,203)
(1,889,808)
(713,613)
5,830,663
—

334,147
(284,548)
(1,076,570)
3,431,945
1,846,876
(910,207)
(505,764)
6,267,336
—

(17,409,777)
(1,337,153)
(839,738)
7,763,346
409,673
(2,800,015)
(1,219,377)
12,097,999
—

58,450,665

41,566,790

100,017,455

34,530,843

46,820,301

81,351,144

$

Supplemental schedules of noncash items:
Noncash capital and related financing activities, capital assets acquired through
non-cash CIAC contribution
Capitalized interest
Construction in Accounts Payable

$

—

90,421

90,421

—

—

—

—

1,292,057

1,292,057

—

987,404

987,404

742,291

2,859,156

3,601,447

2,221,191

3,058,339

5,279,530

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(1)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a)

Nature of Operations
Metropolitan Utilities District (the District), a political subdivision of the State of Nebraska, is a
public utility providing water and gas service to a diversified base of residential, commercial, and
industrial customers. State statutes vest authority to establish rates in the board of directors
(the Board) and provide, among other things, that separate books of account be kept for each utility
department and for the equitable allocation of joint expenses. The Board determines the District’s
rates. The District is not liable for federal and state income taxes. The District pays ad valorem taxes
on real property not used for public purposes. As required by the Enabling Act, the District pays 2%
of its revenue from retail sales within the corporate limits of the City of Omaha to the City of
Omaha, and 2% of its retails sales within other city and village corporate limits to those cities and
villages. The District is subject to state sales and use tax on certain labor charges and nearly all
material purchases.

(b)

Basis of Presentation
The District’s financial statements are presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) for proprietary funds of governmental entities. Accounting records are
maintained generally in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the
National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners (NARUC) and all applicable
pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The District accounts
for the operations of the water and gas system in separate major funds.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing gas and water services to the
District’s customers. The principal operating revenues are charges to customers for providing gas
and water services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.
The District’s accounting policies also follow the regulated operations provisions of GASB
Statement No. 62, which permits an entity with cost based rates to defer certain costs as income, that
would otherwise be recognized when incurred, to the extent that the rate-regulated entity is
recovering or expects to recover such amounts in rate changes to its customers.

(c)

Deferred Inflows of Resources
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue and/or contra expense) until that time. The District
reports contributions in aid of construction (CIAC) as a deferred inflow of resources on the
Statement of net position.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

(d)

Utility Plant
Utility plant is stated at cost. Cost includes direct charges such as labor, material, and related
overhead. Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction represents interest capitalized on
construction projects not paid for by contributions to the extent such projects are financed by debt.
Interest was not capitalized on Gas Department projects in 2014 and 2013. Interest of $1,292,057
and $987,404 was capitalized on Water Department projects in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
Expenditures for ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to operations.
Depreciation of utility plant is computed primarily on the straight-line method over its estimated
useful life. The weighted average composite depreciation rates, expressed as a percentage of the
beginning of the year cost of depreciable plant in service, were:

2014
Water Department
Gas Department

2.1%
3.8

2013
2.1%
3.8

Contributions in aid of construction (CIAC) are reported as a deferred inflow pursuant to the
adoption of GASB 65. For ratemaking purposes, the District does not recognize such revenues when
received; rather CIAC is included in depreciation expense as such costs are amortized over the
estimated lives of the related utility plant. The credit is being amortized into rates over the
depreciable lives of the related plant in order to offset the earnings effect of these nonexchange
transactions.
(e)

Net Position
The net position of the District is broken down into three categories: (1) net investment in capital
assets, (2) restricted for environmental funds, bond reserve funds, debt service requirements and
capital, and (3) unrestricted.


Net investment in capital assets consist of capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation, plus unspent bond proceeds and reduced by the outstanding
balance of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.



Restricted for environmental funds represent net position whose use is restricted through
external constraints imposed by the Nebraska Department of Environmental Quality and the
Nebraska Game and Parks Commission. Restricted for bond reserve fund and debt service
requirements represent net position whose use is restricted per the provisions of the 2006A,
2006B and Series 2012 water revenue bonds. Restricted for capital relates to the $12.5 million
Settlement Fund that was received in affiliation with the renegotiation of the CPEP #2 prepaid
gas purchase contract, of which $662,500 was earned in 2014 and recognized through the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position; funds are restricted in that they
must be used for capital expenditures within three years of the December 1, 2014 closing date.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013



Unrestricted net position consists of net position that does not meet the definition of net
investment in capital assets or restricted for environmental, debt reserve funds, debt service
requirements, or capital.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted first, and then unrestricted resources when they are needed.
(f)

Bond Premium and Discounts
Bond premium and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bond using the
straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.

(g)

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, bank demand accounts, overnight repurchase
agreements, and short-term liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or less.
The Water Department holds $3.1 million in noncurrent “Cash and cash equivalents – restricted”
which is made up of $.2 million in funds required by the Nebraska Game and Parks Commission for
environmental mitigation of wetlands, and $2.9 million of proceeds remaining from the Water
Revenue Bonds Series 2012 issued in December 2012. These funds will be expended to update and
improve the Florence water treatment plant. The Water Department also holds $6.0 million in current
“Cash and cash equivalents – restricted” pursuant to various bond resolutions. The Gas Department
holds $12.5 million in noncurrent “Cash and cash equivalents – restricted” representing the
Settlement Fund resulting from the December 1, 2014 renegotiation of the CPEP #2 prepaid gas
purchase contract; the funds are to be expended on capital expenditures within three years of the
December 1, 2014 closing date.

(h)

Accounts Receivable and Unbilled Revenue
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Amounts collected
on accounts receivable are included in net cash provided by operating activities in the statements of
cash flows. The accounts receivable balance also includes an accrual related to unbilled revenues,
which reflects an estimate of revenues earned after meters are read. The allowance for doubtful
accounts is the District’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the District’s
existing accounts receivable. The District’s allowance methodology was developed based on an
analysis of open accounts and historical write-off experience.

(i)

Inventories
Inventories include natural gas, liquefied natural gas, propane, construction materials, and materials
and supplies. All inventories are carried at weighted average cost.

(j)

Compensated Absences
The District employees earn vacation days at specific rates during their employment. In the event of
termination, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation time up to a maximum allowed
accumulation of no more than what they are eligible to earn in two years. Current and noncurrent
amounts pertaining to accrued compensated absences are recorded within “Other accrued expenses”
in the statement of net position.
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December 31, 2014 and 2013

(k)

Revenues
The District recognizes operating revenues as they are earned. Revenues earned after meters are read
are estimated and accrued as unbilled revenues at the end of each accounting period. Accounts
receivable include unbilled revenues as follows:

Gas
Water
(l)

$

2014

2013

20,271,387
5,314,658

18,675,036
3,133,722

Interdepartmental Transactions
Most routine disbursement transactions of the District are paid by the Gas Department, due in part to
the fact that the Gas Department collects virtually all billings for the District in combined Gas/Water
invoices; balancing between the departments occurs via maintenance of interdepartmental receivable
and payable accounts. At December 31, 2014, the Gas Department reflected a payable to the Water
Department and the Water Department reflected a receivable from the Gas Department of
$8,889,199. At December 31, 2013, the Water Department reflected a payable to the Gas Department
and the Gas Department reflected a receivable from the Water Department of $518,064. The
receivable and payable have been eliminated in the total columns. The magnitude of the change in
interdepartmental activity between years is due primarily to: 1) $4.3 million of Sewer related billings
that were collected in 2014 by the Gas Department, but not transferred to the Water Department, as
the sewer payments are not payable until early in 2015, and 2) transfer of $1.5 million of software
expense from the Gas Department to the Water Department in 2013 related to the Customer
Relationship and Billing system.
The Gas Department’s 3% interest bearing loan to the Water Department, which originated in 2011,
reached a high of $35,484,300 in July 2012 due primarily to federally mandated expenditures at the
Florence and Platte South Water Treatment facilities. These expenditures were addressed in the
Reimbursement Resolution approved at the April 4, 2012 Board meeting; the resolution also
addressed the intention of the District to issue tax-exempt bond anticipation notes or bonds, which
occurred on December 17, 2012. A portion of the $40.7 million in proceeds from the Water Revenue
Bond Series 2012 was used to pay down the intercompany loan to $4,961,503 at December 31, 2012;
the loan was fully paid off during 2013. The funds used to pay off the balance of the loan in 2013
were generated from operations. Interest charged on the note was $70,096 for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The interest income, and expense have been eliminated in the total columns for
2013; the debt was paid off during 2013, so there is no debt elimination necessary for 2014.
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(m)

Billing and Collection Agent Services
The District serves as the billing and collection agent for fees related to sewer services provided by
certain political subdivisions, including the City of Omaha. Separate accounting records are
maintained by the District for these collection services. Fees collected but not yet remitted by the
District to the applicable entities totaled $19,771,909 and $8,528,007 as of December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. These fees have been reflected in the District’s statement of net position and were
remitted to the cities subsequent to year-end. Processing fees billed to the cities for billing and
collection services provided by the District totaled approximately $4.4 million and $4.5 million in
2014 and 2013, respectively. The cities’ fees reflect only the expenses incurred by the District to bill
and collect the cities’ charges. The District bears the cost of meter reading, cash processing and
statement preparation and mailing.

(n)

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management of the District to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

(o)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, issued June 2012, will
be effective for the District beginning with its year ending December 31, 2015. This Statement
replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to
governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as trusts or similar
arrangements that meet certain criteria. This Statement requires governments providing defined
benefit pensions to recognize their long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability for the first
time, and to more comprehensively and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits.
This Statement also enhances accountability and transparency through revised and new note
disclosures and required supplementary information. The District is currently assessing the impact of
this Statement; however, the District does expect the adoption of this Statement to significantly
impact the net pension obligation reported in the statement of net position.
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GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurements Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. This Statement, issued November
2013, will be effective for the District beginning with its year ending December 30, 2015. This
Statement eliminates a potential source of understatement of restated beginning net position and
expense in a government’s first year of implementing GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. To correct this potential understatement, Statement No. 71
requires a state or local government, when transitioning to the new pension standards, to recognize a
beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions made during the time between
the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability and the beginning of the initial fiscal
year of implementation. This amount will be recognized regardless of whether it is practical to
determine the beginning amounts of all other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions. The District is currently assessing the impact of this Statement.
(p)

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2013 financial statements to conform to the 2014
financial statement presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on changes in net position.

(2)

Deposits and Investments
State Statute 14-2144 R.R.S. authorizes funds of the District to be invested in district bonds, municipal
bonds, warrants, and bonds of sanitary improvement districts, and any other investment that constitutes a
legal investment for the school fund of the State of Nebraska.
For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits might
not be returned. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, all bank balances were covered by federal depository
insurance or collateralized with securities held by the Federal Reserve Bank.
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(3)

Utility Plant
Utility plant at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is summarized as follows:

2014:

Utility plant in service:
Depreciable
Nondepreciable (land)

Gas
Department

Water
Department

511,336,427
4,838,930

973,526,580
13,019,909

1,484,863,007
17,858,839

516,175,357

986,546,489

1,502,721,846

10,866,413

28,850,776

39,717,189

527,041,770

1,015,397,265

1,542,439,035

(166,126,941)

(218,627,138)

(384,754,079)

$

360,914,829

796,770,127

1,157,684,956

$

483,744,378
4,374,666

934,041,035
13,019,909

1,417,785,413
17,394,575

488,119,044

947,060,944

1,435,179,988

13,043,617

35,641,676

48,685,293

501,162,661

982,702,620

1,483,865,281

(157,845,857)

(203,052,226)

(360,898,083)

343,316,804

779,650,394

1,122,967,198

$

Total
Construction in progress
(nondepreciable)
Less:
Accumulated depreciation
2013:

Utility plant in service:
Depreciable
Nondepreciable (land)
Total
Construction in progress
(nondepreciable)
Less:
Accumulated depreciation

$
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The provision for depreciation expense is as follows:

Charged to depreciation
Charged to operating and
maintenance

$

$

Gas
Department

2014
Water
Department

Total

Gas
Department

2013
Water
Department

Total

12,352,534

12,425,846

24,778,380

11,674,848

12,072,460

23,747,308

5,277,649

713,399

5,991,048

5,345,431

751,589

6,097,020

17,630,183

13,139,245

30,769,428

17,020,279

12,824,049

29,844,328

The depreciation expense presented above includes a reduction of expense of $6,397,263 and $6,259,209,
for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, due to the amortization of CIAC.
Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:

2014:
Gas Department:
Utility plant in service
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Water Department:
Utility plant in service
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Balance,
beginning
of year

Increases

Decreases

Balance,
end
of year

$

488,119,044
13,043,617
(157,845,857)

34,717,257
33,147,675
(18,431,500)

(6,660,944)
(35,324,879)
10,150,416

516,175,357
10,866,413
(166,126,941)

$

343,316,804

49,433,432

(31,835,407)

360,914,829

$

947,060,944
35,641,676
(203,052,226)

42,044,747
35,795,518
(18,735,191)

(2,559,202)
(42,586,418)
3,160,279

986,546,489
28,850,776
(218,627,138)

$

779,650,394

59,105,074

(41,985,341)

796,770,127

$ 1,122,967,198

108,538,506

(73,820,748)

1,157,684,956
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Balance,
beginning
of year
2013:
Gas Department:
Utility plant in service
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation
Water Department:
Utility plant in service
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Increases

Decreases

Balance,
end
of year

$

459,615,516
13,789,941
(151,117,357)

35,997,300
38,921,716
(17,813,069)

(7,493,772)
(39,668,040)
11,084,569

488,119,044
13,043,617
(157,845,857)

$

322,288,100

57,105,947

(36,077,243)

343,316,804

$

928,707,821
25,072,259
(187,117,675)

20,016,670
30,601,455
(18,290,465)

(1,663,547)
(20,032,038)
2,355,914

947,060,944
35,641,676
(203,052,226)

$

766,662,405

32,327,660

(19,339,671)

779,650,394

$

1,088,950,505

89,433,607

(55,416,914)

1,122,967,198
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(4)

Long-Term Obligations
Activity in long-term obligations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 is as follows:
Balance,
beginning
of year
2014:
Water Revenue Bonds
Series 2012
Plus unamortized premium
Series 2006A revenue bond
Less unamortized discount
Series 2006B revenue bond
Plus unamortized premium
NDEQ note payable #1
NDEQ note payable #2
CNG promissory note
Other postemployment
benefits
Pension obligation
Self-insured risks
Remediation obligation
Other accrued expenses

2013:
Water Revenue Bonds
Series 2012
Plus unamortized premium
Series 2006A revenue bond
Less unamortized discount
Series 2006B revenue bond
Plus unamortized premium
NDEQ note payable #1
NDEQ note payable #2
CNG promissory note
Other postemployment
benefits
Pension obligation
Self-insured risks
Remediation obligation
Other accrued expenses

$

Increases

Decreases

Balance,
end
of year

Due within
one year

39,560,000
2,456,844
82,910,000
(227,231)
82,925,000
2,007,140
159,856
5,191,088
1,596,977

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—
—

1,275,000
129,513
3,205,000
(13,255)
2,850,000
112,935
62,161
250,485
211,294

38,285,000
2,327,331
79,705,000
(213,976)
80,075,000
1,894,205
97,695
4,940,603
1,385,683

1,590,000
—
3,325,000
—
2,675,000
—
64,040
255,521
216,713

85,169,770
2,931,932
2,053,616
2,411,897
6,549,355

15,864,648
9,047,588
1,850,912
617,352
776,240

3,225,290
10,299,996
1,897,797
31,231
268,556

97,809,128
1,679,524
2,006,731
2,998,018
7,057,039

—
—
1,496,460
1,498,018
289,373

$ 315,696,244

28,156,740

23,806,003

320,046,981

11,410,125

40,745,000
2,586,357
86,005,000
(240,486)
85,675,000
2,120,074
220,193
4,918,550
1,802,984

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
518,512
—

1,185,000
129,513
3,095,000
(13,255)
2,750,000
112,934
60,337
245,974
206,007

39,560,000
2,456,844
82,910,000
(227,231)
82,925,000
2,007,140
159,856
5,191,088
1,596,977

1,275,000
—
3,205,000
—
2,850,000
—
62,161
250,486
211,303

73,071,771
4,151,309
3,606,504
2,417,927
5,570,887

15,783,994
9,080,619
492,569
—
1,197,904

3,685,995
10,299,996
2,045,457
6,030
219,436

85,169,770
2,931,932
2,053,616
2,411,897
6,549,355

—
—
1,711,203
2,411,897
268,556

$ 312,651,070

27,073,598

24,028,424

315,696,244

12,245,606

$
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(a)

Notes Payable
Included in long-term debt in the Water Department is a 3% note payable (NDEQ note payable #1)
and a 2% note payable (NDEQ note payable #2) to the Nebraska Department of Environmental
Quality (NDEQ). NDEQ note payable #1 is payable in semiannual installments of $33,247 plus an
administrative fee through December 15, 2016. Note payable requirements to maturity for NDEQ
note payable #1 are as follows:

2015
2016

$

Principal
64,040
33,655

Interest
2,454
518

$

97,695

2,972

Administrative
fee
818
173
991

Total
67,312
34,346
101,658

NDEQ note payable #2 relates to construction of the Platte South contact basin project. The
District’s loan agreement was based on a budgeted project cost of $7,049,000; if actual project costs
equal budget, the agreement results in a loan amount of $5,959,225 with the NDEQ, and principal
forgiveness of $1,089,775, in the form of a grant.
The Platte South contact basin project was completed in late 2012, with total direct project costs of
$6,886,837. As of December 31, 2013 and 2014, the District had received the total committed loan
funds of $5,797,062. During 2014 and 2013, the District paid back $250,485 and $245,974,
respectively, as principal. The note payable requirements to maturity, June 15, 2031, for NDEQ note
payable #2 are as follows:
Principal
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020-2024
2025-2029
2030–2031

Interest

Administrative
fee

Total

$

255,521
260,657
265,896
271,240
276,692
1,469,155
1,622,860
518,582

97,541
92,405
87,166
81,821
76,369
296,153
142,447
10,400

48,770
46,202
43,583
40,911
38,185
148,077
71,224
5,200

401,832
399,264
396,645
393,972
391,246
1,913,385
1,836,531
534,182

$

4,940,603

884,302

442,152

6,267,057
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(b)

Water Revenue Bonds
2006A Series Bonds and 2006B Series Bonds
On February 24, 2006, the District issued 2006A Series Bonds for a par value of $100,000,000, and
on October 11, 2006, the District issued 2006B Series Bonds for a par value of $96,000,000. The
remaining outstanding balance, annual installments, and interest rates at December 31, 2014 and
2013 consist of:
Annual
installment

Interest rate

Principal outstanding
2014
2013

Series 2006A bonds:
Serial
Term

4.0% – 4.375%
4.0

$

2,985,000 – 5,910,000
0 – 12,640,000

67,065,000
12,640,000

70,270,000
12,640,000

Series 2006B bonds:
Serial
Term

4.0% – 5.0%
5.0

$

2,675,000 – 5,285,000
0 – 18,225,000

61,850,000
18,225,000

64,700,000
18,225,000

The 2006A Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on and after December 1,
2016. The 2006B Bonds are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on and after June 1,
2017. Principal and interest payments are as follows:
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 – 2024
2025 – 2029
2030 – 2032

Principal

Interest

Total

$

6,000,000
6,315,000
6,555,000
6,830,000
7,110,000
40,500,000
50,320,000
36,150,000

6,986,963
6,743,263
6,488,562
6,223,663
5,947,862
24,956,275
15,243,131
2,969,625

12,986,963
13,058,263
13,043,562
13,053,663
13,057,862
65,456,275
65,563,131
39,119,625

$

159,780,000

75,559,344

235,339,344

The indenture, under which the revenue bonds were issued, provides for the creation and
maintenance of certain funds. These cash and investments are classified as restricted on the statement
of net position. The District has pledged future water revenues to repay the 2006A and
2006B Series Bonds. Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the Platte West Water
Treatment Plant. The 2006A and 2006B Series Bonds are payable solely from water revenues and
are payable through 2031 and 2032, respectively. Principal and interest paid and total operating
water revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 were $13,280,663 and $106,628,656,
respectively, and for the year ended December 31, 2013 were $13,306,462 and $106,325,700,
respectively.

26

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2014 and 2013

Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012
On December 17, 2012, the District issued Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 for a par value of
$40,745,000. The balance, annual installments, and interest rates at December 31, 2014 and 2013
consist of:
Annual
installment

Interest rate
Series 2012 bonds:
Serial
Term

2.000% - 4.000%
3.0

$

1,185,000 - 2,335,000
2,455,000 - 2,865,000

Principal outstanding
2014
2013
25,010,000
13,275,000

26,285,000
13,275,000

The Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012 are subject to optional redemption prior to maturity on and
after December 15, 2022. Principal and interest payments are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 – 2024
2025 – 2029
2030 – 2032

Principal

Interest

Total

$

1,590,000
1,585,000
1,680,000
1,735,000
1,800,000
9,870,000
11,755,000
8,270,000

1,328,644
1,296,844
1,249,294
1,182,094
1,112,694
4,533,619
2,544,100
523,592

2,918,644
2,881,844
2,929,294
2,917,094
2,912,694
14,403,619
14,299,100
8,793,592

$

38,285,000

13,770,881

52,055,881

The indenture, under which the revenue bonds were issued, provides for the creation and
maintenance of certain funds. These cash and investments are classified as restricted on the statement
of net position. The District has pledged future water revenues to repay the Water Revenue Bonds
Series 2012. Proceeds from the bonds will be used to finance a portion of the costs of improvements
to the District’s Water System including multiple projects undertaken to upgrade the District’s Platte
South Plant and Florence Plant in part to comply with current regulatory requirements. The Water
Revenue Bonds Series 2012 are payable solely from water revenues and are payable through 2032.
Principal and interest payments of $1,275,000 and $1,354,144, respectively, were paid on these
bonds in 2014; total water revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 were
$106,628,656 and $106,325,700, respectively.
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2006A, 2006B and Series 2012 Debt Covenant Compliance
At December 31, 2014, the District was in compliance with the provisions of the Series 2006A and
2006B water revenue bonds covenants, which require charges and assessments collected in each
fiscal year to be greater than the sum of (1) current expenses, (2) 120% of average annual debt
service of the revenue bonds, and (3) 100% of any other unpaid long-term obligations and any other
indebtedness as they become due
At December 31, 2014, the District was in compliance with the provisions of the Series 2012 water
revenue bond covenants. The District covenants that it will fix, establish, and maintain rates or
charges for water, services, or facilities supplied or furnished by the District that will provide an
amount sufficient to pay current expenses and to generate net revenue at least equal to the sum of:
(a) 120% of the amount equal to the average principal and interest requirements on the bonds,
including any parity revenue bonds, then Outstanding; and (b) 100% of the amount required to pay
any other unpaid long-term obligations (excluding current expenses) and any other unpaid
indebtedness of the District (including any amounts required to be accumulated and maintained as
reserves therefore) that are payable from system revenues, as the same shall become due.
Charges and assessments exceeded amounts required by covenants by approximately $21.7 million
and $24.4 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively; funds available for debt service were equal to 2.6
and 2.7 times average debt service costs in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
(c)

CNG Promissory Note
The District’s Gas Department entered into a Business Loan Agreement on December 16, 2010 for
$2,200,300. This loan is a low-interest loan obtained from the Nebraska Energy Office and its
lending partner. This loan matures December 15, 2020 and the interest rate is fixed at 2.5%.
Principal and interest payments for the CNG promissory note are as follows:

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

(5)

Principal
216,713
222,191
227,969
233,814
239,810
245,186
1,385,683

$

$

Interest
32,614
27,136
21,358
15,513
9,516
3,381
109,518

Total
249,327
249,327
249,327
249,327
249,326
248,567
1,495,201

Line of Credit
The District’s Gas Department entered into an unsecured line of credit on October 31, 2006 for
$30,000,000. The current Loan Agreement matures May 1, 2015. The interest rate on the line of credit is
variable and is calculated based on the “Three Month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR)” plus 50
basis points; under no circumstances will the rate on this loan be less than 3%. As of December 31, 2014
and 2013, the interest rate is 3% and no amounts were outstanding. The District did not draw on the line of
credit during 2014 or 2013.
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(6)

Pension Plan
(a)

Plan Description and Funding Policy
The District sponsors a single-employer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) for all full-time
employees of the Water and Gas Departments administered by a third-party administrator. The Plan
was established and may be amended by the Board. The Plan provides retirement, disability (in the
form of continued credited service), death, and termination benefits. An employee of the District is
eligible for coverage at the time of employment. Vesting is achieved upon the completion of
five years of service. The District does not issue a separate report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the Plan.

As of January 1, 2014, membership
of the Plan consists of the
following:
Active employees
Long-term disability
Terminated vested
Retirees and beneficiaries
receiving benefits

821
22
35
568
1,446

The Plan is not subject to either the minimum funding standards of the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act of 1974 or the maximum funding limitations. Funding standards are actuarially
determined using the Entry Age Normal Cost method. Actuarial reviews are produced on an annual
basis; the most recent was as of January 1, 2014.
The information presented in the notes to the financial statements and required supplementary
information was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. The actuarial
value of assets is calculated using an asset-smoothing method. Valuation information is as follows:
Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization period
Remaining amortization period
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increase
Annual postretirement benefit increase
Inflation rate

January 1, 2014
Entry age normal cost method
30 years
30
7.25%
4% to 11%
3%
3.25%
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(b)

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation
The District’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the Plan for 2014 and 2013 were as
follows:
2014
Annual required contribution
Interest on net pension liability
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$

Annual pension cost
Contributions made
Decrease in net pension
obligation
Net pension obligation, beginning of year
Net pension obligation, end of year

$

2013

8,987,679
212,565
(152,656)

8,995,793
300,970
(216,144)

9,047,588

9,080,619

10,299,996

10,299,996

(1,252,408)

(1,219,377)

2,931,932

4,151,309

1,679,524

2,931,932

The annual pension costs, the percentage of annual pension cost contributed, and the net pension
obligation are as follows:
Three-year trend information
Annual
Percentage
Net
pension
of APC
pension
cost (APC)
contributed
obligation
Year ended December 31:
2014
2013
2012

(c)

$

9,047,588
9,080,619
9,335,821

114% $
113
110

1,679,524
2,931,932
4,151,309

Contributions
Annual contributions to the Plan for employee members comprise two components: 1) employee
contributions, and 2) a District contribution at a level sufficient so that the District, in total, is
funding the annual required contribution (ARC) as per the Plan’s actuarial valuation. Employee
contributions were equal to 4.32% of base salary in 2014, and 3.76% of base salary in 2013.
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(d)

Funding Status and Funding Progress (In Thousands Except Percentages)
Actuarial
value of
assets
(a)

Actuarial valuation date
January 1, 2014
January 1, 2013
January 1, 2012

Actuarial
accrued
liability
(AAL)
entry age
(b)

$

300,066 $
277,702
263,114

349,176 $
328,045
315,122

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)

Funded
ratio
(a/b)

49,110
50,343
52,008

Covered
payroll
(c)

86 % $
85
83

55,847
51,031
51,869

UAAL as a
percentage
of covered
payroll
((b-a)/c)
88
99
100

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following
the notes to basic financial statements on page 39, present multiyear trend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits.
(7)

Postemployment Benefits
(a)

Plan Description
The District provides certain postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to eligible
retirees and their spouses in accordance with provisions established by the Board. The plan is a
single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by the District. The plan does not issue
separate financial statements.

(b)

Funding Policy
The contribution requirements of plan members and the District are established and can be amended
by the Board. Contributions are made to the plan based on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the years
ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, the following payments were made:

2014
Water retirees
Gas retirees
Total claims/fees paid
Retiree contributions
Total

2013

$

2,145,132
2,621,828

$

2,069,386
2,529,250

$

4,766,960
(1,541,670)

$

4,598,636
(912,641)

$

3,225,290

$

3,685,995

Retirees contribute to the cost of retiree health care at varying rates based on their age. The rates in
effect as of April 1, 2014 are as follows: 1) ages 59 and older: $178.17 per month, 2) age 58:
$267.26 per month and 3) ages 55 through 57: $534.51 per month. If spousal coverage is purchased,
the same age-based monthly rates apply for the spouse (i.e. a married couple each of whom is age 59
and older would contribute $356.34 per month). Retiree health premiums are calculated based on a
three-year rolling average, with 2015 projected costs serving as the final year of the calculation.
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(c)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The District’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of
the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postretirement
Benefits Other than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The District’s annual OPEB cost, the
percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation for 2014, 2013
and 2012 are as follows:

Annual OPEB
cost
Fiscal year ended:
December 31, 2014
December 31, 2013
December 31, 2012

$

Annual OPEB%
contributed

15,864,648
15,783,995
15,505,654

20% $
23
20

Net OPEB
obligation
97,809,128
85,169,770
73,071,771

The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for 2014 and 2013,
the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB obligation:
2014
Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

$

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made
Increase in OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation – end of year

$

32

2013

15,296,849
3,406,791
(2,838,992)

15,296,849
2,922,871
(2,435,726)

15,864,648

15,783,994

3,225,290

3,685,995

12,639,358

12,097,999

85,169,770

73,071,771

97,809,128

85,169,770
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Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the plan as of January 1, 2013, the date of the last actuarial valuation, is as
follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL)
Actuarial value of plan assets
Unfunded actuarial
accrued
liability (UAAL)
Funded ratio
UAL as a percentage of
covered payroll
(d)

$

183,201,781
—

$

183,201,781
—%
358

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Actuarial valuations on an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary
information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing benefit costs between the employer and plan member
to that point. The actuarial methods used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations. In the January 1, 2013 actuarial valuation, the unit
credit actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% projected
investment rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend of 8.50% initially, reduced by periodic
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0% after five years. Both rates include a 3.0% inflation
assumption. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years as a level
percent of payroll.
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(8)

Deferred Compensation
The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan is available to all District employees and permits them to defer a
portion of their salary until future years. Following one year of service, the District matches 50% of the
first $2,000 deferred by employees hired prior to January 1, 2014; for employees hired after January 1,
2014, the District matches 100% of the first $2,000 deferred by employees. The deferred compensation is
available to employees when one of three events occurs: separation of employment, hardship for
unforeseeable emergency, or a small balance distribution. District matching contributions totaled $527,196
and $524,328 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(9)

Self-Insured Risks
The District is exposed to various risk of loss related to torts, theft of and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, and natural disasters. In addition, the District is exposed to risks of loss due to injuries to, and
illnesses of, its employees. The District provides its employees with two health insurance options, both of
which are primarily self-insured: a Health Maintenance Organization (HMO) and a preferred provider
Organization (PPO). The District utilizes an “Administrative Services Only” contract under which the
District reimburses the HMO/PPO for actual claims paid, a monthly administrative fee, and stop-loss
protection for individual claims. Individual stop-loss coverage is effective when annual individual claims
exceed $500,000, and when aggregate claims exceed 125% of projected levels. A liability for claims is
recorded in accounts payable, and was $1,163,447 and $1,558,458 at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.
The District carries commercial insurance coverage for auto and property with deductibles ranging from
$500 to $100,000. The District is also self-insured for workers’ compensation and general liability and
does not carry additional commercial coverage. There have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage in 2014. In 2014, 2013, and 2012, the insurance policies in effect have adequately covered all
settlements of claims against the District. No claims have exceeded the limits of property or liability
insurance in any of the past three years. Liabilities are recorded for these self-insured risks. The liabilities
are based on a combination of loss experience and estimates by the District’s in-house legal department.
Changes in the District’s self-insured risk balances during 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

Gas Department
2014
2013

Water Department
2014
2013

Beginning balance
Expenses/Adjustments
Payments

$

1,047,744
637,663
(778,789)

1,701,332
(55,968)
(597,620)

1,005,872
1,213,249
(1,119,008)

1,905,172
548,537
(1,447,837)

Ending balance

$

906,618

1,047,744

1,100,113

1,005,872
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(10) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Accounts Receivable Write-offs
The allowance for doubtful accounts provides for the potential write-off of uncollectible account balances.
An estimate is made for the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts based on an analysis of the aging of
Accounts Receivable and historical write-offs. With the June 2013 implementation of the Customer
Relationship and Billing System (CRB System), the District implemented a prospective change whereby
only receivable balances over five years old will be written off, a change from the prior practice of writing
off receivable balances that are over two years old; consequently, there were no receivable write-off’s
during 2014 or 2013. During 2012, the Gas Department and Water Department wrote off receivables
totaling $1,036,622 and $343,639, respectively. The allowance consists of the following at December 31:

2014
Water Department
Gas Department

$

2,242,728
3,816,685

2013
1,164,115
2,619,477

(11) Commitments
(a)

Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP)
Central Plains Energy Project (CPEP) is a public body created under Nebraska Interlocal Law for the
purpose of securing long-term, economical, and reliable gas supplies. CPEP currently has three
members: the District, Cedar Falls Utilities, and Hastings Utilities, each of which has equal
representation on the board of CPEP. CPEP has acquired gas through long-term prepaid gas purchase
agreements and delivers gas to its members or customers through long-term gas supply contracts for
specified volumes of gas at market-based pricing less a contractual discount. Members or customers
are only obligated to pay for gas if, and when, delivered by CPEP. CPEP’s debt is not an obligation
of the District or any other members or customers of CPEP. CPEP has issued $1.8 billion of gas
supply revenue bonds to fund these natural gas prepayment transactions, which are secured by gas
contracts entered into with each project’s members or customers. Under the current agreements, the
District anticipates taking approximately 90% of the gas acquired in these transactions under a
20-year gas purchase agreement entered into with CPEP in 2007 and two 30-year gas purchase
agreements, one entered into in 2009 and the other in 2012. Terms of this 2007 gas supply agreement
were renegotiated in 2009 and again in 2012; the gas flows under this agreement will now expire on
October 31, 2020. The 30-year gas purchase agreement entered into in 2009 was renegotiated in
2014 subsequent to litigation; full details are provided below. Audited financial statements of CPEP
are available from the District.
At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the District owed CPEP $9,679,798 and $7,295,873 for gas
purchases under these agreements. During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, billings
from CPEP to the District for services provided under these agreements were $62,484,579 and
$43,483,733, respectively.
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The District has contracted to purchase the following volumes of gas from CPEP, through 2042, at a
discount to market-based pricing on a pay-as-you-go basis:
DTH
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020 – 2042

12,722,739
12,791,991
12,697,528
11,886,986
8,737,594
129,566,500
188,403,338

In 2014 and 2013, the District purchased 12,720,872 DTH of gas under these agreements, representing 37% of
the District’s annual gas requirements each year. As discussed below, the 2009 long-term prepaid gas purchase
contract has also been renegotiated subsequent to litigation.
In January 2014, Royal Bank of Canada (RBC) filed a lawsuit in U.S. District Court in Omaha to terminate its
30-year obligation to deliver gas pursuant to CPEP #2, which originated in August 2009. The CPEP #2 supply
agreement accounts for approximately 15% of the District’s annual gas requirements. RBC asserted that a change
in international bank regulations relative to a requirement to maintain increased reserves against prospective
losses related to the CPEP deal, serves as a “triggering event” to terminate the supply agreement. CPEP disputed
RBC’s position, and a countersuit was subsequently filed. On December 1, 2014, this matter was resolved; the
renegotiation provides for the following: 1) $12.5 million up-front proceeds at closing, which have been recorded
as unearned gas purchase discounts by the District, and will be recognized as a reduction of the cost of natural
gas based on the pattern of gas purchases through October 2019; 2) locked-in discounts of $.16 per DTH for the
period November 1, 2014 through October 31, 2019, and 3) the ability to renegotiate discounts for the
November 1, 2019 through June 30, 2039, the remaining duration of the contract. It should be noted that the
aforementioned $12.5 million up-front proceeds are restricted, in that they must be spent on capital projects
within three years from the closing date of December 1, 2014.
(b)

Other Gas Supply Agreements
The District has various other gas supply contracts with a variety of suppliers, which consist of
contracts that expire March 31, 2015, October 31, 2015, March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2017 and are
generally renewed on an annual basis.
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(c)

Gas Transportation Agreements
The District has entered into long-term gas transportation agreements with Northern Natural Gas
Company (NNG). The District’s current agreement expires October 31, 2016, and provides
for 198,975 Dth/day of Firm Pipeline Transportation service during the months of
November through March and 139,283 Dth/day of Firm Pipeline Transportation service during the
months of April through October. Per the terms of the agreement, 78% of the transportation volumes
are priced at a discounted rate below NNG’s maximum tariff rate with the remaining 22% priced at
NNG’s maximum tariff rates. The District’s annual Pipeline Demand costs under this agreement,
based on NNG’s current tariff rates, is $11.5 million.
On November 7, 2012, the District’s entered into a twenty (20) year firm transportation agreement
with Northern Natural Gas; the term of the new agreement runs from November 1, 2016 to
October 31, 2036. Under this agreement, NNG will provide 198,975 Dth/day of firm transportation
service during the months of November through March and 139,283 Dth/day of firm transportation
service during the months of April through October. Per the terms of the agreement, 61% of the
transportation volumes are priced at a discounted rate below NNG’s maximum tariff rate with the
remaining 39% priced at NNG’s maximum tariff rates. The District’s annual pipeline demand costs
under this agreement, based on NNG’s current tariff rates, will be $15 million.

(d)

Construction
At December 31, 2014, the District’s obligation under the uncompleted portion of contracts for plant
facilities and equipment for the Water Department amounted to approximately $ 4.0 million which
will be financed through operations and the proceeds from the Water Revenue Bonds Series 2012.
For the Gas Department, approximately $.9 million obligations existed at December 31, 2014.

(12) Contingencies
The District is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business.
Management believes, based on the opinion of legal counsel, that the amount of ultimate liability with
respect to these actions is adequately covered by the District’s accrued liabilities for self-insured risks.
(13) Pollution Remediation
During 2011, the District was identified as a potentially responsible party (PRP) related to a site of a
former manufactured gas plant (the Site). The Site is currently owned by the City of Omaha. This Site was
subject to a site investigation by a third party to help the District determine potential options and costs
associated with remediating the Site. In 2011, the District recorded a remediation liability of $2,500,000, of
which $119,334 has been spent through December 31, 2014, primarily related to developing a remediation
plan for the site. During the preparation of the District’s 2015 budget, estimated remediation amounts were
updated to reflect the delays in proceeding while awaiting the State’s approval of the proposed remediation
plan and the impact of inflation. The new total remediation liability at December 31, 2014 is $2,998,018,
of which $1,498,018 is included as a current liability in the accompanying statements.
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With the assistance of the aforementioned third party, a detailed remediation plan was submitted to the
State of Nebraska in November 2012; to this point, the District has not received approval from the state. In
light of the uncertainty associated with the pending approval of the remediation plan, cost estimates remain
subject to change in future periods. The District believes there is at least one other potentially responsible
party that may be legally obligated to contribute to the remediation costs at the site and may pursue
recovery from those parties depending on results of the site investigation. The remediation liability was
measured at its expected amount, using the expected cash flow technique.
Although not finalized, remediation will include at a minimum, removal of contaminants to be shipped to
an appropriate landfill, providing fill dirt, monitoring ground water activity, and providing a “cap” of clean
fill dirt. The remediation accrual balance that remains represents the District’s best estimate at
December 31, 2014 and is subject to change pending finalization of remediation plans.
The District has provided the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) with many documents regarding the
past use of the facility. To date, there have been no orders from the EPA requiring the District to do
anything; however, the District has applied with the State of Nebraska’s Voluntary Remediation Program,
which the State of Nebraska manages locally on behalf of the EPA. Acceptance in the voluntary program
will eliminate EPA from having to “order” the District to do anything.
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Schedules of Funding Progress
(Dollar amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Schedule of Funding Progress – Pension

Actuarial
valuation
date
1/1/2014
1/1/2013
1/1/2012
1/1/2011
1/1/2010
1/1/2009

$

Actuarial
value of
assets
(a)
300,066
277,702
263,114
252,420
241,025
235,349

Actuarial
accrued
liability
(AAL)
entry age
(b)
349,176
328,045
315,122
304,163
291,187
277,524

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
(b-a)
49,110
50,343
52,008
51,743
50,162
42,175

Funded
ratio
(a/b)
86%
85
83
83
83
85

Covered
payroll
(c)
55,847
51,031
51,869
51,484
50,782
46,428

UAAL as a
percentage
of covered
payroll
((b-a)/c)
88%
99
100
101
99
91

Covered
payroll
(c)
51,200
52,893
50,782
46,428

UAL as a
percentage
of covered
payroll
((b – a)/c)
358
335
364
346

Schedule of Funding Progress – OPEB

Actuarial
valuation
date
1/1/2013
1/1/2011
1/1/2009
1/1/2008

Actuarial
value of
assets
(a)
—
—
—
—

Actuarial
liability
(AL)
(b)
183,202
177,049
184,719
160,494

Unfunded
AL
(UAL)
(b – a)
183,202
177,049
184,719
160,494

Funded
ratio
(a/b)
—%
—
—
—

The information presented in the notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information was determined as part of the
actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Valuation information is as follows:

Valuation Date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization period
Remaining amortization period
Actuarial assumptions
Investment rate of return
Projected salary increase
Annual postretirement benefit increase
Inflation rate
Annual healthcare cost trend

Pension

OPEB

January 1, 2014
Entry age normal cost method
30 years
30 years

January 1, 2013
Unit credit actuarial cost method
30 years
30 years

7.25%
4% to 11%
3%
3.25%
N/A

4.0%
N/A
N/A
3.0%
8.5% initially, reduced by periodic
decrements to a rate of 5% after five
years
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(Unaudited)

Coverage

Description

Deductible or
coinsurance amounts

Name of insurer

Expiration
date

Buildings (including contents)

Fire and extended coverage

Affiliated FM Insurance

$100,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Boiler

Boiler and machinery

Zurich American Insurance Co.

$100,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Contractors Equipment floater

Construction equipment and
communication equipment

Continental Casualty Co.

$40,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Data Processing Equipment

Equipment, media and extra expense

Hartford Fire Insurance

$5,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Travel Insurance

All employees and directors while

Reliance Std. Life Ins. Co.

2-7-2015

Davis Insurance

3-4-2015

on a bonafide business trip
Fidelity and other bonds

President
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Water Department
Statutory Information Required by Chapter 14,
Section 2145 of the Revised Statutes of Nebraska of 1943
Year ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Operating revenues, net
Thousands of gallons of water supplied to mains
Thousands of gallons of water sold

$

106,046,790
31,735,350
29,493,606

Maintenance
Gross additions to utility plant in service, exclusive of land
Land purchased
Depreciation charged to operations and other accounts
Cost per thousand gallons of water sold (schedule A)
Collected for sale and rent of meters, net
Assessments against property for extension of mains
Operating expenses (schedule B)
Average number of employees for the year
Compensation of employees for the year
Direct taxes levied against property at request of District for fire
protection service (in lieu of hydrant rental)
All other facts necessary to give an accurate and comprehensive view
of the cost of maintaining and operating the plant

$

20,609,349
42,044,747
—
13,139,245
3.08
607,821
—
83,577,753
387
27,696,777
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Schedule A
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Water Department
Cost per Thousand Gallons of Water Sold
Year ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Operations
Maintenance
Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities

$

Total operating expenses

49,202,247
20,609,349
12,425,846
1,340,311
83,577,753

Other deductions:
Interest

7,206,394

Total operating expenses and other deductions

$

Thousands of gallons of water sold

90,784,147
29,493,606

Cost per thousand gallons of water sold

$

42
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Schedule B
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Water Department
Operating Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Operations:
Primary pumping
Purification
Booster pumping
Distribution
Customer accounting
Marketing
Administrative

$

Total operating

8,631,070
10,874,418
2,526,668
7,982,011
10,331,490
604,936
8,251,654
49,202,247

Maintenance:
Primary pumping
Purification
Booster pumping
Distribution

2,125,013
3,455,838
2,127,449
12,901,049

Total maintenance

20,609,349

Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities

12,425,846
1,340,311

Total operating expenses

$
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METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Schedule of Insurance Coverage
December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)

Coverage

Description

Deductible or
coinsurance amounts

Name of insurer

Expiration
date

Buildings (including contents)

Fire and extended coverage

Affiliated FM Insurance

$100,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Boiler

Boiler and machinery

Zurich American Insurance Co.

$100,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Contractors Equipment floater

Construction equipment and
communication equipment

Continental Casualty Co.

$40,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Travel Insurance

All employees and directors while
on a bonafide business trip

Reliance Std. Life Ins. Co.

Auto Fleet

Physical damage - specified parts

Harleysville Insurance Co.

$1,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Data Processing Equipment

Equipment, media and extra expense

Hartford Fire Insurance

$5,000 deductible

6-1-2015

LNG plant

LNG plant and contents

Ace American Insurance Co.

$250,000 deductible

6-1-2015

Propane caverns

Two caverns - special cause of loss,

Ace American Insurance Co.

$250,000 deductible

6-1-2015

nonowner liability

2-7-2015

including earthquake and flood
Fidelity and other bonds

President

Davis Insurance

3-4-2015
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Gas Department
Statutory Information Required by Chapter 14,
Section 2145 of the Revised Statutes of Nebraska of 1943
Year ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Operating revenues, net
Dekatherms of gas delivered to mains
Dekatherms of gas sold

$

274,768,334
34,093,121
34,092,916

Maintenance
Gross additions to utility plant in service
Depreciation charged to operations and other accounts
Cost per thousand cubic feet of gas sold (schedule A)
Collected for sale and rent of meters
Assessments against property for extension of mains
Operating expenses (schedule B)
Average number of employees for the year
Compensation of employees for the year
Direct taxes levied against property at request of District
All other facts necessary to give an accurate and comprehensive view
of the cost of maintaining and operating the plant

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

15,916,517
33,348,454
17,630,183
7.24
—
—
246,033,444
468
33,395,840
—
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Schedule A
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Cost per Thousand Cubic Feet of Gas Sold
Year ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Natural gas
Operations
Maintenance
Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities
Total operating expenses

$

175,462,030
37,757,331
15,916,517
12,352,534
4,545,032

$

246,033,444

Thousands of cubic feet of gas sold

34,092,916

Cost per thousand cubic feet of gas sold

$
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Schedule B
METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Gas Department
Operating Expenses
Year ended December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Operating expenses:
Natural gas

$

175,462,030

Operations:
Production
Distribution
Customer accounting and collecting
Marketing
Administrative

3,721,494
10,314,519
13,602,834
1,245,192
8,873,292

Total operations

37,757,331

Maintenance:
Production
Distribution

3,289,325
12,627,192

Total maintenance

15,916,517

Depreciation
Provision for statutory payments to municipalities

12,352,534
4,545,032

Total operating expenses

$

47

246,033,444

METROPOLITAN UTILITIES DISTRICT
Statistical Highlights
Years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
(Unaudited)
Water Department

2014

2013

2012

207,026

205,250

203,230

29,493,606

30,832,205

35,524,909

$

106,046,790
83,577,753

106,198,509
81,305,472

110,229,155
80,414,733

$

22,469,037

24,893,037

29,814,422

$

36,182,638
986,546,489
2,886
86,836

31,388,682
947,060,944
2,866
91,397

39,984,373
928,707,821
2,854
103,681

223,080

221,023

218,979

29,545,878
4,547,038

29,755,286
4,700,662

22,699,082
4,928,453

34,092,916

34,455,948

27,627,535

$

274,768,334
175,462,030
70,571,414

235,758,491
140,631,922
65,177,748

182,554,766
104,975,911
58,413,913

$

28,734,890

29,948,821

19,164,942

$

35,674,509
516,175,357
2,791
93,185

38,599,942
488,119,044
2,771
94,909

41,439,324
459,615,516
2,772
75,682

859

823

828

Number of customers (December)
Sales (thousand gallons)
Operating revenues, net
Operating expenses
Operating income
Plant additions and replacements, net
Plant in service
Miles of mains
Average daily pumpage (thousand gallons)
Gas Department
Number of customers (December)
Sales (DTH):
Firm
Interruptible
Total
Operating revenues, net
Cost of gas sold
Other operating expenses
Operating income
Plant additions and replacements, net
Plant in service
Miles of mains
Average daily sendout (DTH)
Number of active employees – water
and gas combined
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